ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE COVMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
April 1, 2014
8:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Benjam n Nageak, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Neal Foster

Representati ve Bob Herron

Representative Lora Reinbold
Representative Sam Kito |11

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Kurt O son
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 379
"An Act relating to the limtation on the value of property
taxabl e by a municipality; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 238

"An Act relating to the state and nunicipal pr ocur enent
preferences for agricultural products harvested in the state and
fisheries products harvested or processed in the state; relating
to legislative oversight of those procurenent preferences; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSSSHB 238(CRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 317
"An Act relating to official traffic-control devices at schools

and in school zones."

- MOVED CSHB 317(CRA) QUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 379
SHORT TITLE: O L & GAS PROPERTY TAX
SPONSOR(s): COMMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -1- April 1, 2014



03/ 28/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 28/ 14 (H) CRA
04/ 01/ 14 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 238
SHORT TITLE: PROCUREMENT PREF: AK GROWN FI SH AG PRODS
SPONSOR(S): TARR GARA

01/ 21/ 14 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 10/ 14

01/ 21/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 14 (H) CRA, FIN

02/ 21/ 14 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
02/ 21/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 21/ 14 (H) CRA, FIN

03/ 18/ 14 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

03/ 18/ 14 (H -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 27/ 14 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

03/ 27/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 27/ 14 (H M NUTE( CRA)

04/ 01/ 14 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 317

SHORT TITLE: TRAFFI C CONTROL DEVI CES NEAR SCHOOLS
SPONSOR(s): TUCK

02/ 19/ 14 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 14 (H) CRA, TRA

03/ 13/ 14 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

03/ 13/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 13/ 14 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 27/ 14 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

03/ 27/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 27/ 14 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

04/ 01/ 14 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

JOHN BI TNEY, State Governnent Liai son

Nort h Sl ope Borough

Barrow, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 379.

ROB ELKINS, Deputy Director
Adm ni stration and Fi nance
Nort h Sl ope Bor ough

Barrow, Al aska

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 2- April 1, 2014



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions with regard to HB 379.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor

Al aska Departnent of Commerce, Community & Econonic Devel opnent
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions with regard to HB 379.

SCOTT BRANDT- ERI CHSEN, Att or ney
Ket chi kan, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified with regard to HB 379.

ANCELA RODEL, Commi ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified with regard to HB 379.

MATT FONDER, Director

Tax Divi sion

Depart ment of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions with regard to HB 379.

REPRESENTATI VE GERAN TARR

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 238, reviewed changes in
Version N

DANNY CONSENSTEIN, State Director

Departnent of Agriculture, Farm Service Agency, Al aska
Menber, Al aska Food Policy Counci

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 238.

REPRESENTATI VE CHRI S TUCK

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 238.

REPRESENTATI VE CHRI S TUCK

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as sponsor of HB 317.

CONNI E MCKENZI E, Legi sl ative Liaison

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT)
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 3- April 1, 2014



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Reported on the fiscal note for CSHB 317.

JEFF STARK, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Departnment of Law, Transportation Section

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns regarding CSHB 317.

KENDRA CLOSTER, Staff

Representative Chris Tuck

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding HB 317.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:07:48 AM

COCHAIR GABRIELLE LEDQUX <called the House Community and
Regi onal Affairs Standing Commttee neeting to order at 8:07
a.m Representatives Reinbold, Kito Il1l, LeDoux, and Nageak
were present at the call to order. Representatives Herron and
Foster arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 379-O L & GAS PROPERTY TAX

8:08:34 AM

CO CHAI R LEDOUX announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 379, "An Act relating to the limtation on the
value of property taxable by a nunicipality; and providing for
an effective date.™

8. 08: 57 AM
CO CHAIR NAGEAK introduced HB 379, which is sponsored by the

House Conmunity and Regional Affairs Standing Conmittee of which
he is a co-chair. He said the North Sl ope Borough is seeking a

| egislative change that wll provide nore flexibility in
managing its own budget, while providing a sliding scale for
muni ci palities to lower taxes on oil and gas properties. He

summari zed the history of the North Slope Borough. Beginning in
the late 1960s oil was discovered in Prudhoe Bay, and his people
were excited, but also apprehensive, because if anything
happened in areas of traditional hunting and gathering, it would
have trenendous inpact on the people and their way of life, so,
initially, residents were against developnent in that area. He

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -4- April 1, 2014



recall ed comng hone fromserving in the Arny in 1972 and seeing

a conpletely different world. "It is an opportunity for our
people to nove forward; to build things; but first we had to
form sone sort of instrument to help us do that." He noted that
the |eaders, |ike Eben Hobson, Jake Adans, and others, started
the land clains and the formation of the borough. The people
were uneasy, he said, but over the years they canme to believe
that the oil industry and the people's way of life, including
the animals and the environnment, can coexist. "That was a new
thing for us; we've seen the oil industry be a good neighbor in

the State of Alaska," he said, but it was not always |ike that.

CO CHAIR NAGEAK said that when the borough was being forned,
there was considerable anxiety from the industry and the state,
and he recalled hearing that the I nupiag were ignorant and could
not govern a nunicipality. They were told that they were not
far from the Stone Age and the area was so vast and there were
no famly ties within the area. But for a mllennia, his people
lived and traveled together, and he pointed out that his
grandfather was an Inupiag mssionary with a parish that went

from Barrow to Kaktovik and to the Canadian border. He has
rel atives everywhere: Point Hope, Kotzebue, Anaktuvuk Pass,
W seman, and naybe even in Russia, he noted. | nupi ag and ot her

Al aska Natives have always had a form of government, but they
were characterized as ignorant and wunable to run their own
affairs, and if they had a borough and noney started com ng in,
they would "go crazy and spend everything on frivolous things."

8:16:32 AM

CO- CHAIR NAGEAK said, "The reality is another story." H s
peopl e organi zed and becane a hone rule government in a fashion
like no other, and "from the get-go they knew what they were
doing." He spoke of the charter of the North Slope Borough: to
take care of the land, give everyone a say, and consider the
wildlife, and it was witten by young nen chosen by Eben Hobson.
To this day, it is one of best charters in the state—+t even has
a departnent of wldlife managenent, he said, because it is
inportant to have viable animal popul ations. He noted that he
was the director of that departnment for about six years. He
asked, "Wat has happened since 1972?" He recalled waking up
sone nornings, freezing-cold, and heading to the warmh of the
school nechanical room to wash up before walking in the front
door of school. Today, there are beautiful schools, airports,
runways, roads (although still dusty and filled with potholes),
clinics, and an educational system that is equal to anywhere in
the state. Co-Chair Nageak attributed it all to what the North

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 5- April 1, 2014



Sl ope Borough has provided. He repeated that the state and the
oil industry were against formng the borough, and so the state
sued the people of the North Slope, because "they didn't trust
us." The borough has been very successful and he is proud. He
has been an assessor and a mayor, and he recalled that at the
age of 24 he was talking with oil industry people about billions
of dollars. "W didn't back dowmn. W got the valuation that we
t hought was enough for the North Slope," he said.

8:23:41 AM

CO CHAI R NAGEAK said, "Forty-sonme years later, we're in the sane
dang boat." He said HB 379 would anend "the way the val uation
is." The sane people who sued the people of the North Slope are
keeping the borough from naking the desired changes. One
accusation is that the borough would nmake Al aska |ose noney, he
said. Since the borough was fornmed, it has operated on an 18.5
mll rate, although it is allowed a 20 mll rate, and "we didn't
use it all because we're good people,” he said. The 1.5 mll is
$30 million annually, and it goes to the State of Al aska. The
state has benefitted from the borough, and since it was forned,
t he borough has given the state $1.2 billion, and "that's being
a good steward,"” he said.

8:27:50 AM

JOHN BITNEY, State Governnent Liaison, North Slope Borough,
noted the inportance of knowing the history in terns of "where
did this cone from and why are we talking about it." Under
current law, the state assesses a property tax on oil and gas
properties at 20 mlls, and the nunicipalities have authority to
set a tax rate that can capture sone of that, up to 20 mlls.
The North Slope taxes 18.5 mills, which leaves 1.5 mlls to the
state, he expl ai ned. He said the North Sl ope Borough is trying
to anend a fornmula that was crafted in the early 1970s in state
law that puts a cap on what a municipality, with oil and gas
property, can use from those revenues for its operations budget.
He said the fornmula essentially caps the amobunt of oil and gas
property tax revenue that can be used for an operating budget.
This is not a bill to raise taxes, but rather to raise the cap
that limts what nunicipalities can use for their operations
budget, he clarified.

8:30:48 AM

CO CHAI R LEDOUX asked if all nunicipalities have the cap

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 6- April 1, 2014



MR. BITNEY said the cap is a general law of applicability that
applies to all oil and gas properties, and there are different
formulas that a nmunicipality can choose. He stated that the |aw
applies to all, but there are two nmunicipalities where the oi
and gas revenues are the nost significant form of income, by
far, and that is the North Sl ope Borough and the Gty of Val dez.

8:32:26 AM

CO- CHAIR LEDOUX inquired as to why the state should even care
how a municipality spends its funds.

MR. BI TNEY answered that "sonebody did care,” and "that is the
frustration that brings us here today." He said that when the
state was beginning to develop its gas and oil resources, a
[imtation was placed in statute.

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER requested an explanation of how [the
statute] works.

8:33:39 AM

MR. BITNEY pointed to a 2013 annual report produced by the state
assessor called, "Al aska Taxable,”™ and he said there is a good
explanation of the fornmula on page 34. It shows two fornulas,
and one sets the operating cap (which is the focus of HB 379),
and there is also the actual tax rate, he said. The fornul a
takes the average per capita of the full value of the
municipality, multiplies it by 225 percent, and then nultiplies
that by the population, and the product is the operating cap.
In 2013 it was $174.6 mllion. "Once you have that nunber
calculated by the state assessor's office, you then nove down to
the formation of the borough's budget and the actual tax |evy

anount that the borough puts in place," he explained. The
borough sets that $174.6 nmillion as the operating budget, and
that works out to be 9.08 mlls of tax. He said that the

borough taxes at 18.5 mills, so the difference between that and
the 9.08 mlls of property tax equals what the borough is
allowed to use for the debt service for its capital needs. Over
all of these years, the North Slope Borough has built up its
infrastructure to a point where it does not need the debt
service anmount, he stated. VWhat it needs is flexibility to
spend nore on operations to namintain the existing facilities.
It is an inefficient systemto try and pay for things with debt,
considering its interest charges and issuance costs, he added.
He said that HB 379 changes the fornmula for the operations cap
by increasing the 225 percent nultiplier.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -7- April 1, 2014



8:37:41 AM

CO CHAI R LEDOUX asked about elimnating the fornula altogether.
"Why does anybody have to regulate ... how nuch they can spend
for this and how much they can spend for that?" She suggested
that the borough be allowed to tax at 20 percent and |eave it at
t hat .

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER said that is a great idea.

MR. BITNEY said what he wants to enphasize is that it is the
borough's full intent to stay at 18.5 ml|s.

8:39:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked if there was a nunber, or a cut off
on the sliding scale, that the borough would prefer. He asked
if the borough would like to make that decision each year and
what they wanted the |l egislature to do.

MR. BITNEY said it is a sliding scale in HB 379. The intent was
to alleviate concerns that, if a formula were elimnated, it
woul d | eave unlimted headroom for taxes to go up, and "we have
tried to craft sonething here that shows that that's not our
intention." That is why it is crafted as a sliding scale. I n
fact, if [the tax] goes above 19 mlls there will be no benefit
of an increased nultiplier, but if [the tax] goes below 18.5
mlls, there would be a higher multiplier than what is being
proposed for the borough. He said there may be an incentive to
| oner taxes, which would remt nore of that revenue to the

state. In essence, by lowering taxes there is a gain in
flexibility with the higher multiplier, he explained. At a 300
percent multiplier within the 18 mll|l range, there wll be about

$50 to $55 million of flexibility for the borough. This is an
annual exercise of the mayor and the assenbly, but in |ooking at
the history of budgets and taxation, 18.5 is a steady nunber by
t he borough. He added that state law requires that the mll
rate apply equally to all taxpayers, so anyone raising taxes
will have to face the |ocal constituency.

8:42: 40 AM
REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER surm sed that the borough does not intend
to increase the 18.5 mll rate, because the state has a concern

that an increase would |leave the state with |ess [npney]. | f
the borough decreases that rate, the state would get nore

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 8- April 1, 2014



[ roney], because "if you go down to 18, well now the state picks
up 2 mills instead of 1.5, so that's better for the state, but
the intent, though, is maybe to stay at 18.5 or go |lower, and
however that sliding scale within how the borough wants to spend
that noney, part of it goes to debt, part of it goes to
operations—+'mtotally fine with that."

8:43:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD said she is not sure that she fully
understands the intent of HB 379. She noted that she was part
of an initiative in Anchorage to cap taxes, so she finds this
really, really interesting. "Qur operating budgets were getting
out of control—they still are, but at least this helped," she
expl ai ned. She said a 9 percent operating budget is inpressive,
if that is how much the borough is spending. She said she wants
to ensure that nobody 1is paying nore, even on existing
structures.

MR BITNEY said that was true.
8:44: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  REINBOLD surm sed t hat , right now, t he
muni ci pality collects 18.5 [mlls], but only 9 percent is used
for the operating budget. "It sounds |ike you think that you
have enough capital projects, so the capital projects are not
going to suffer inthis, is that correct?"

MR BITNEY said that is correct.
8:44: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD said it is a good exanple if the borough
is able to keep a | ow budget and living affordable. The schools
are not going to be inpacted; the roads are not going to be
i npacted; none of the infrastructure is going to be inpacted—is
t hat correct?"

MR. BITNEY answered that what is needed is nmintenance, so the
i mpact would be to keep it all in good shape for years to cone.

8:45: 02 AM
REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD said she believes that a |ot of people

use capital noney for maintenance, and she really thinks that
mai nt enance and i nprovenent should be in the capital budget.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 9- April 1, 2014



REPRESENTATIVE KITO |1l declared that he has a conflict because
of a contract with the North Sl ope Borough on another issue. He
then pointed to the formula in the taxation manual and asked
about the 30 mlls identified in the first cal cul ation.

8:46: 35 AM

ROB ELKINS, Deputy Director, Admnistration and Finance, North
Sl ope Borough, said the first thing that the North Sl ope Borough
uses is the formula in AS 29.45.080, which allows the borough to
choose between either developing a budget of $1,500 per person
or 225 percent per capita value of assessed property, multiplied
by the borough popul ation. He said that the borough uses the

second figure. It provides an equivalent tax base, so in the
current year, the North Sl ope Borough has a total assessed tax
base of $17.9 billion, he explained. Because of the calculation

requi red under AS 29.45.080(c), the borough takes the per capita
average full property tax value, which is $146,000, and
multiplies it by the 225 percent allowed in statute and cones up
with an average nodified full value of $330,152. That nunber is
then nmultiplied by the population (18,637), which provides an
equi val ent tax base. "So rather than being able to tax for
operations that entire $17.9 billion, we have a nodified tax
base of $6.153 billion—that nunber then has a 30 mll limt as
identified under statute, applied to it, which gives, this year
the North Slope Borough $184 nillion to use for operations and
| eaves a | eftover of $146 million for debt service."

8:49:16 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KITO Il asked where the 30 mlls is in statute.
MR. ELKINS said he will have to get back to the commttee.

CO-CHAIR NAGEAK noted his conflict of interest as he is a
resident of the North Sl ope Borough.

8:50: 21 AM

COCHAIR LEDOUX said he [and Representative Kito] wll Dbe
required to vote, and she opened public testinony.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor, Al aska Departnent of Conmerce
Community & Econom c Devel opnent, said that the 30 m |l [|anguage
is in AS 28.45.090(a), and it restricts the maxi mum operating
budget to 30 mlls or 3 percent.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -10- April 1, 2014



8:52:27 AM

SCOTT BRANDT- ERI CHSEN, Attorney, Ketchikan, said he is only
representing hinself and that he worked on a case several years
ago related to the statute being discussed. He originally
believed that HB 379 was special interest legislation to give
the North Sl ope Borough and Valdez a l|larger portion of the oil
and gas tax revenues, but after reviewing the bill, he sees it
as an opportunity to fix sonething that has annoyed him
Firstly, the fiscal note will likely relate whether the anount
of revenues going to the state will be inpacted by HB 379, but
the sections of Jlaw that he has had concern wth, AS
29.45.080(b), 090(b)(1) and (c)(1l), deal wth the limt of
$1,500 per capita. He noted that the 2013 "Alaska Taxable
Report," pages 24-25, shows per capita revenues by mnunicipality.
The North Slope Borough is $45,340 per capita and Juneau is
$2,420 per capita, and better than half of the nmunicipalities

are above the $1,500 per capita limt. "I would submt that
that $1,500 a year per capita limt serves no purpose and is
i neffective." He said the state assessor's office has treated
those two limts as disjunctive—neaning that the nunicipality
only has to conply with one or the other. Since the $1,500
limt has no real neaning, he suggested elimnating it. He said

he also sees a benefit fromelimnating both limts altogether.
A better limtation on the | evy of taxes would be what the |ocal

community would be willing to pay, he opined. From a public
policy standpoint, both the 225 percent linmt and the $1,500
l[imt should be elimnated for all nunicipalities and then

deci ded by voters.
8:57: 08 AM

ANGELA RODEL, Commi ssioner, Al aska Departnent of Revenue, said
she would like to give the state's perspective on oil and gas
property tax. It is inmportant to know that the tax is a
nmechani sm for Al aska to receive revenue from areas that greatly
benefit fromoil devel opnent and to allow the noney to spread to
other parts of the state. Additionally, oil and gas property
tax affects Alaska's oil production tax calculations, "so when
you take off limtations on oil and gas property tax, that's a
deduction on the oil production tax, which feeds 90 percent of
the state budget." She said the state is supportive of the
borough's need for nore funds to its operating budget, and the
bill before the commttee has created a nechanism that allows
the borough to adjust mll rates to account for nore operating
budget revenue if needed, but "we have a $10 million potential

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -11- April 1, 2014



negative affect, and that's sinply to recognize the fact that if

the borough does in fact ... raise its tax rate and take the
full 20 mlls, the state would have an inpact of about $10
mllion as opposed to $30 mllion, which you heard
Representative Nageak speak to earlier."™ She noted that there

IS no reason to believe that the borough will do that.
8:59:19 AM

CO CHAI R LEDOUX asked if the borough could do that now-+ncrease
the tax rate from18.5 mlls to 20 mlls.

COWM SSI ONER RODEL said, "They could increase it and it would
have an inpact of $30 mllion; the reason they don't is because
they haven't—and they don't intend to—and they're fully using
their operating budget now, and | think that’s the beauty of the
creation of the sliding scale is that it does mnimze the
i npact on the state at this tinme."

8:59: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER spoke to the sponsor statenent, which says
that the nunicipality would gain nore flexibility by |owering
the taxes, and lowering the taxes appears to increase the
multiplier. The goal is to be able to spend nore on operations,
and, right now, the borough is being restricted by the formula.

"I was a little bit concerned when | saw the $10 million here
because | thought it's not the intent of the borough, | guess,
to increase their mll rate.”

COWMM SSI ONER RODEL agr eed. That is her understanding. "W try
to nake a point to outline the inpacts for you so that you
under st and when you' re maki ng deci sions about the bill."

9:01: 18 AM
REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted that Conmmi ssioner Rodel called it
"the beauty of the sliding scale,” and he asked if the scale

could be nodified to be nore advantageous for the state.

COW SSIONER RODEL said the state worked hard to find a
mechanism that did not inpact the state, but [the statute]

applies to any nunicipality with oil and gas property tax. To
have zero inpact on the state would force nunicipalities with
higher mll rates to cut them she explained. "We think the

sliding scale is as neutral as we're going to be able to get,"
she added.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -12- April 1, 2014



9:02: 32 AM

REPRESENTATIVE KITO 11l asked why a |limt was placed on
operating funds originally.

COW SSI ONER RODEL said she does not know, but she knows there
is the 30 mlIl rate that applies to all municipalities, and this
multiplier was to equalize property values with areas wthout
oil and gas property tax.

9:03: 30 AM

MATT FONDER, Director, Tax Division, Alaska Departnent of
Revenue, said he believes that is the basic premse [of the
statute], but he does not have the exact |egislative intent.
The statutes are about 40 years old, he noted.

CO- CHAIR NAGEAK said it has been nore than 40 years, and the
bor ough has never gone above 18.5 mlls. It never will because
peopl e understand that "we have to be good stewards of not only
our municipality, but we need to be good citizens of the state.”
Bei ng good citizens nmeans sharing some of the wealth—we could
go all the way to 20; we could have, but we choose not to and we
will continue to choose not to," he stated.

9:05: 25 AM

CO CHAIR LEDQUX cl osed public testinony. She said HB 379 is
good legislation, but if she had drafted it, she may have
elimnated the entirety of the fornula, but she does not want to
slow the bill down to do that.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noved to report HB 379 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

9:06: 33 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from9:06 a.m to 9:10 a. m

HB 238- PROCUREMENT PREF: AK GROWN FI SH AG PRODS

9:10: 30 AM

CO- CHAI R LEDQUX announced that the next order of business woul d
be the SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 238, "An Act

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -13- April 1, 2014



relating to the state and rmunici pal procurenment preferences for
agricultural products harvested in the state and fisheries
products harvested or processed in the state; relating to
| egi slative oversight of those procurenent preferences; and
providing for an effective date."

9:11: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER noved to adopt the CS to SSHB 238, | abel ed
28-LS1167/ N, as the working docunent.

CO CHAI R LEDOUX obj ected for purposes of discussion

REPRESENTATI VE GERAN TARR, Al aska State Legislature, said the
bill in front of the commttee contains the changes that were
adopted at the last neeting. She said that the first change to
HB 238 renoves the audit section, and the second change nobves
the effective date up. She noted that there is a handout
related to the fiscal note.

9:12:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER said he totally supports the idea of
supporting Alaska industries. He asked if a school district
woul d be required to purchase [Al aska] products, as long as the
price did not exceed the price of Qutside goods by 12 percent,
and then that would increase school costs. He pointed out the
i ssues of [base student allocations] and school funding.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said that school food purchases are funded
by the Farns-to-School program and HB 238 nerely provides
purchasing flexibility. She added, "W would hope that wth
that additional price flexibility that for products that are
avai |l abl e, they would purchase them"

9:14:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked if the [Farns-to-School programn
fund needs to be increased.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR noted that the tineline she just provided to

the coomttee wll show where the costs m ght show up. In May
or June of this year, she said, the bill could be signed into
law, and then in the sumrer and fall, "we" would work with the

Department of Agriculture Farm Service Agency and its networKks.
There are electronic newsletters and the Al aska G own Booklet to
communi cate with purchasers and sellers, she said. As budgets

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -14- April 1, 2014



are finalized in the fall—-and if new products and vendors cone
in through the program+that is when there mght be changes in
t he budget. But, she added, "it could be true that it's just a
shifting in costs, where sone of the purchasing is now Al aska-
grown products that replace products that were purchased
Qutside.” There may not be an overall increase from HB 238, it
just mght be that [the state] is paying a little bit nore for
Al aska products, she expl ai ned.

9:15:45 AM

CO CHAIR LEDOUX said if [the state] is paying a little nore for
t he products, why would there not be an increase?

REPRESENTATIVE TARR said it would be part of overall food
purchasing, and the buyers could shift purchases so that there
woul d not be an overall increase.

9:16:36 AM

CO CHAI R LEDOUX asked about the school districts, because they
would be required to buy those Alaska itens that are less than
12 percent over the cost of non-Al aska foods—so it would inpact
t hose budgets.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said it would for those particular itens,
but it would not necessarily inpact the overall budget. "It may
mean that they are buying Alaska-growmm products that they
weren't buying before, because the price was a linmting factor
It doesn't necessarily nean that they didn't find efficiencies
in their other purchases that allowed them to just essentially
cost shift around in their overall itens that they buy."

9:17: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER inquired as to the position of the schoo
districts regardi ng HB 238.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said she worked wth the Dvision of
Agriculture, which is the sponsor of the Farmto-School program
and it has been supportive of the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked if the calculation is pre or post
FOB. If a school district wants to buy a product "and it is bid
FOB—+n ot her words, you have to deliver it to us.... "

REPRESENTATI VE TARR sai d she assunes it would be pre FOB

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 15- April 1, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said there is a significant difference.
9:18:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked if Representative Tarr has "actually
| ooked at what it costs to buy product outside of the delivery
system of agricultural products harvested in the state and
fisheries products harvested in the state conparing when we buy
it fromoutside. |Is that conparable?"

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said |arge-scale purchases tend to be |ess
expensive through the large conpanies |like Csco. It has been a
challenge for Alaskan farmers to get into those distribution
chains and be able to provide that reliable anpbunt each week.
She recalled the comments that were made [in the |ast hearing]
that the hope is to build nore reliability in the food system

9:20: 16 AM

CO- CHAIR LEDOUX said this is not a new program it just changes
the percentage from 7 percent to 12 percent, "so whatever it's
doing with the FOB, et cetera, it's no change.” She asked where
the 12 percent figure canme from

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said it came from conversations with farners
regarding prices, and this is a 5 percent increase, which seened
to be a reasonable first step. This was a priority of the
Al aska Food Policy Council, because it views HB 238 as a way to
achieve the goal of strengthening food systens and security in
Al aska and to increase Al aska-grown purchases.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked if Representative Tarr would
consi der HB 238 as Al askan-hire | egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said she had not thought about it, but she
does believe there are great opportunities and nore Al aska hire.

9:22:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD said she does not want to increase
school budgets. She said she is a huge supporter of Al aska
Grown, especially if Al aska encounters a food crisis. She noted
that Alaska food is a lot fresher and healthier—and tastes
better. She said she thinks HB 238 coul d decrease shipping, and
that is inportant. The legislation nmay increase jobs in Al aska.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -16- April 1, 2014



Her understanding of the bill, she said, is it just allows 5
percent nore flexibility to purchase Al aska-grown products.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR agreed, and it allows for that increased
price flexibility, and we will see if the market can neet that
demand, otherw se, foods will keep being purchased from Qutsi de.

9:23: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD stated that if the program works, there
is potential for the prices to decrease.

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER noted that HB 238 is supposed to provide
nore flexibility, but on page 1, Section 1(a), it says "shall".

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said, "shall to the extent that those

products are available,” and "that's what we're trying to
acconplish here is creating nore product availability that would
fulfill the needs of those larger institutional purchasers and

by having additional price flexibility that can help acconplish
t hat goal ."

9:24: 37 AM

CO CHAI R LEDOUX gave an exanple of a limted budget, |ike $100,
and Al aska-grown sweet potatoes are 12 percent over the market
price, and then she suggested prices mght increase if Al aska-
growmn food can be sold at 12 percent over market price. Then
muni ci palities mght buy Iess Al aska-grown products, she
surm sed.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said she had not considered that as a

potential outcone. The Al aska-grown produce that is avail able
has established prices, and to increase prices would work
agai nst those sellers. She believes there wll be market

pressure to keep prices reasonable, but the prices reflect that
Al aska-grown products cone fromsnaller farns, she said.

REPRESENTATIVE KITO I1l said that it seens |like HB 238 wll
provide an opportunity for smaller Alaska businesses to be
conpetitive.

9:27: 50 AM
DANNY CONSENSTEIN, State Director, Departnment of Agriculture,

Farm Service Agency Al aska and nenber of the Al aska Food Policy
Council, said the Al aska Food Policy Council has the goal of

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -17- April 1, 2014



strengthening food stability in the state. He noted that

probably 95 percent of foods Al askans eat come from Qutside. If
Al aska purchased nore Al askan food, the econom c benefits would
include job opportunities, supporting small entrepreneurs who

are in the food business, and keeping nore food dollars in the
community, he added. He noted the health benefits and spoke of
the costs of health-related diseases and the lack of fresh

vegetables in village markets. He said the bill wll have
educational benefits as school children can see that food cones
from the ground, not from a package. He said that one out of

five children go to school hungry, and Alaska is not prepared
for energencies, so there is lack of food security because of
the lack of a food system The bill is just one little piece of
building a stronger food system by having the state play a
|arger role as a purchaser, he noted. If the state can becone
nore of a driver, then it can create nore of a market for
Al aska-grown food, and, thus, there will be incentive to expand
and to add new entrants. As the supply increases, there will be
an econony of scale, he said, and prices wll cone down. The
| arger vegetable producers in Alaska wll currently match
outside prices, and "so why wouldn't a state agency or a schoo

di strict purchase that?"

9:34:45 AM

REPRESENTATIVE CHRIS TUCK, Alaska State Legislature, recalled
sone of the past agricultural resolutions in the |egislature,
and on this subject alone, every single nenber in the House
spoke, because it is a passionate issue and sonething where al
Al askans want to see nore done. He said this is a step in right
direction, to sustain the state and to provide better nutrition
in Alaska schools. He noted that attenpts for local hire
preferences have been found unconstitutional, but one thing that
has been successful is Alaska's procurenent policies for Al aska
busi nesses. This step is to nmake sure that products grown and
produced in Al aska have a preference with state procurenent, and
such policies have been proven and tested. He said he |ikes HB
238; Al aska needs to be self-reliant with food.

9:37:20 AM

COCHAIR LEDOQUX closed public testinony and renoved her
obj ection, therefore Version N was before the commttee.

CO CHAI R NAGEAK noved to report the commttee substitute to SSHB

238, labeled 28-LS1167/N, out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 18- April 1, 2014



no objection, CSSSHB 238(CRA) was reported from the House
Communi ty and Regi onal Affairs Standing Conmittee.

9:38: 07 AM
The commttee took an at-ease from9:38 a.m to 9:40 a. m

HB 317- TRAFFI C CONTRCL DEVI CES NEAR SCHOOLS

9:40: 05 AM

CO CHAI R LEDQUX announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 317, "An Act relating to official traffic-
control devices at schools and in school zones." She noted that
Version U was previously adopted and is before the conmttee as
a wor ki ng docunent.

REPRESENTATI VE CHRI S TUCK, Al aska State Legislature, said the CS
to HB 317 has new fiscal notes.

9:41: 07 AM

CONNI E MCKENZI E, Legi sl ative Li ai son, Depart ment of
Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT), said that there are
fiscal notes for each of the three DOT regions. Statew de, the
cost is $624,000 to inplement HB 317 for the schools that are
now included in the definition. Approxi mately 30 percent wll
be on state roads, she added.

9:42: 01 AM
CO CHAI R LEDOUX not ed the huge change in the fiscal note.

M5. MCKENZIE said the change is due to allowing the traffic
safety practitioners to be able to review all the various signs,
crosswal ks, and signals for each school, instead of just
flashing signals. "By being able to |ook at the different kinds
of signs and signals that mght be practical for any one school,
we were able to reduce the fiscal note dowmn to $624, 000."

9:43: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK thanked DOT and said there wll be
appropriate, cost-effective signage to bring public awareness of
school | ocations.

CO- CHAI R LEDOUX opened public testinony.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -19- April 1, 2014



9:43: 53 AM

JEFF STARK, Chief Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law,
Transportation Section, said he works a great deal with DOT, and
he still has concerns with Version U The requirements in
current law are that the state adopt a uniform system of traffic
safety devices, and that requirenment is in two sections, AS
19.10.040 and AS 19.10.050, he said. Currently, DOT engineers
have discretion as to where traffic control devices are placed.
He said his concern wth Version U is that Al aska statutes
indicate that the wuniform system adopted by the state mnust
i nclude provisions for both posting traffic control signals and
mar ki ng and posting traffic control devices. He believes, based
on the fiscal note, that DOl is interpreting a great deal of

di scretion under the new bill, but he does not read it as
liberally as DOT does. "I know that DOT is fully on board wth
what | believe is the intent of the sponsor, which is to treat
private schools, charter schools, [and] religious schools all
the sane as public schools, and this bill does that, but | am
concerned that it still restricts the discretion of the traffic
and safety engineers in terns of what sort of signage, what sort
of signals they use nore than it should.” He said that |anguage

can be worked out, but it is not yet done.
9:47: 07 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KITO Il asked if current statute needs changi ng.

MR. STARK said no, the current statute is probably fine,
although it is not terribly well witten. It dates back to pre-
st at ehood. He said AS 19.10.040 deals with marking and posting
of hi ghways, and AS 19. 10.050 deals with providing signals. He
said he would rather the two be conbined and just address

"installing traffic control devices." But under current |aw,
the state has adopted the Mnual on Uniform Traffic Control
Devi ces, whi ch ori gi nat es Wi th t he Feder al H ghway
Adm nistration and is adopted by the Anerican Association of
H ghway and Transportation Oficials. It is then incorporated
by the state into the Alaska Traffic Manual, which is approved
by the Federal Hi ghway Adm nistration. That rmanual provides a

great deal of discretion to the traffic and safety engi neers as
to the placenent of traffic control devices, so his concern with

CSHB 317 is the use of the term "nmust" on page 1, line 14, and
page 2, line 5. He noted that safety engineers do not believe
that signals are required in all school zones as it would be an
unnecessary expense and can even decrease safety. "Having these

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 20- April 1, 2014



requi renents split and saying that they nust use both in schoo
zones, | think they've lost the necessary discretion that they
have under current |aw, " he concl uded.

9:50: 10 AM

REPRESENTATIVE KITO 11l pointed to Section 5 of Version U,
requiring the nmunicipality to erect traffic control devices in
school zones "in conformance with the Al aska Traffic Mnual."
It seens that there is discretion, he said.

MR. STARK said Section 5 addresses nunicipalities, and it does
give that discretion under current l|aw, but Sections 1 and 2
deal wth DOI, "and | would read it saying you nust provide
traffic control devices ... and that, again, would renove the
di scretion fromthe nunicipality."

CO CHAIR LEDOUX asked M. Stark if he would be willing to work
with the sponsor of HB 317 to devel op the appropriate |anguage.

MR. STARK sai d absol utely.
REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked about commttee referrals.
9:52: 00 AM

KENDRA CLOSTER, Staff, Representative Chris Tuck, Alaska State
Legislature, said the bill wll go to the House Transportation
St andi ng Conmi ttee next.

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER said the concept is good, and if HB 317
were going to the finance conmittee, it could be fixed there.

CO CHAIR LEDOUX said it mght go to the finance conmttee now
that it has a fiscal note.

9:52: 39 AM

M5. CLOSTER noted that she has been working with Doug Gardner
[Attorney for Legislative Legal Services], traffic engineers,
and people from the Ofice of the Attorney General, and there
have been sone differences of opinions. There have been
multiple requests from traffic engineers to reference both
sections of the statute, she said. The transportation conmttee
coul d address current statute and what m ght need to be changed,
because narkings, postings, and signage are all under different
sections.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -21- April 1, 2014



9:54: 05 AM

CO CHAI R LEDOUX cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said if "nmust" was changed to "may" on the
first page, the commttee could nove the bill along and it may

not need a fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER said he supports noving the |egislation

al ong. The transportation conmttee can |look at some of the
detail ed questions, but, overall, he said he |ikes the concept.
9:55:22 AM

CO- CHAIR LEDOUX stated that she would like to nove HB 317 out of
commttee but with the proviso that the House Transportation
Standi ng Conmittee work on M. Stark's concerns.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked if Representative Herron had nade
a conceptual anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said it was just a suggestion.

CO- CHAIR LEDOUX noted that changing "nust" to "may" guts the
entire bill because DOT could do what it wanted.

9:56: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD said the change would help with the
fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK said he does not have a problem with the
fiscal note as it exists. "The department has been working
really well with us,"” he added. Wthout "must" there will not
be the public awareness for charter, private, and religious
schools. He said he wants action on this.

9:57.:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON sai d he di sagreed because both DOT and the
assistant attorney general "disagree wth your statenent.”
G ven all of the other changes, he said, HB 317 could becone a
reality, but if "nust" and the fiscal note remain, "I am not as
hopeful . "

CO- CHAI R LEDOUX asked if he would like to offer an anendnent.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -22- April 1, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said, "My colleague from the Eagle River
Val l ey has offered to make that conceptual anmendnent."”

9:58: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD said she does not want to gut the bill,
because it is really, really inportant, but she does not want to
make it mandatory if it includes all Headstart prograns and
pr eschool s.

CO CHAIR LEDOUX stated that she prefers passage of HB 317
wi t hout anmendnent .

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON sai d he supports the co-chair.

9:59:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER noved to report CSHB 317, Version U, out
of committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB

317(CRA) was reported from the House Conmmunity and Regional
Affairs Standing Comm ttee.

CO CHAIR LEDOUX reiterated the proviso stated earlier

10: 00: 26 AM

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 10:00 a. m

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -23- April 1, 2014



